
Question City or County Answer

While it is true that the city employs one full-

time equivalent psychiatrist, it isn’t true that 

the city has been otherwise without psychiatry 

coverage. Coverage has been inconsistent and 

inadequate. There is no overall City clinic 

clinical psychiatry oversight. City

This IGA would provide clinical oversight for the 

psychiatrists.

The CCHHS Board’s Request for Approval is not 

transparent. It doesn’t inform the public that 

CCHHS plans to use a for-profit vendor to 

provide psychiatry services, that the services 

are being offered by telepsychiatry, or that the 

agreement includes electronic medical records. County

The agreement is between the County and the City and the 

County, at least initially, will be using one of its vendors.  

Telepsychiatry is a common practice -- CCHHS has used this 

in several settings.  The agreement allows the treatment 

team to share access to medical records.

To-date CDPH has not told the Community 

Mental Health Board that it is considering using 

telepsychiatry and planning an 

intergovernmental agreement with CCHHS. City

CDPH has discussed the IGA with the board and the use of 

telespscyiatry on February 26th. 

The proposed start date for the agreement is 

March 1, 2018. Is there a signed CCHHS-CDPH 

letter of intent? Both

A start date has not been set at this time.

Before moving to telepsychiatry, CDPH should 

provide a full accounting of its efforts to recruit 

psychiatrists to provide in-person care for its 

City residents. City

Since 2015, the hourly salary has been increased 2 times- 

moving from $87.73/hour to 106.00/ hour. The program 

interviewed a candidate in October 2017, who was selected 

but later declined to accept.  The job posting was posted 

several times over the course of each year.  NHSC site 

designation. Initiatied a a professional services contract RFP 

that was under review of DPS, but halted due to CCHHS 

psychiatry IGA.



When the use of telepsychiatry came up 

before, Ms. Bailey said that she did not believe 

that telepsychiatry was the “right fit” for CDPH 

centers. What has changed? City

The department has decided to move forward with the 

provision of telepsychiatry services.

What is the level of access to psychiatry 

through the CountyCare Health Plan? What is 

the protocol for access to psychiatry for City 

clinic residents enrolled in CountyCare and 

Meridian Health Plans? County

County Care (CC) can access psychiatry anytime needed, 

regardless if related to the city or other avenues through 

calling for an appointment through central scheduling or 

calling the clinic manager for an intake.

Since the current IGA continues the practice of 

outsourcing and paying a for-profit company 

for

psychiatric care why doesn’t CDPH increase 

contracting with the current vendor, 

LocumTenens.com? City

This solution does not allow access to labs or medication, 

which the new IGA with CCHHS does.  In addition, this is a 

more stable, long term solution for CDPH patients.

Why doesn’t CDPH contract with ReGroup 

Therapy directly? City

A direct contract would not allow access to labs and 

medication.  In addition, CCHHS may utilize CCHHS 

psychiatrists in the future.  

According to CCHHS ReGroup contract Exhibit 

B, the price per psychiatrist hour for adults 

charged to CCHHS is $250. This exceeds the 

current cost of an in-person psychiatrist hour 

provided through LocumTenens.com or 

$175.40 per hour. What will be the hourly cost 

to CDPH for telepsychiatry under the IGA? Both

It will be the hourly cost CCHHS incurs for the psychiatrist.  

Bear in mind, utilizing psychiatrists credentialed through the 

CCHHS system means there will be access to labs and 

medications, which CDPH does not have access to now.

How does the IGA relate to the Request for 

Proposals (Specification No. 228018) for 

temporary psychiatry services? City

The RFP for temporary services is to be used instances of 

short-term personnel needs have been identified within the 

program. The IGA offers up a stable solution.



What is the level of access to psychiatry at 

CCHHS Ambulatory Care Health Network 

(ACHN) facilities? County

The main access points for ACHN outpatient psychiatry are 

at Provident Hospital and Austin Health Center, in addition, 

CCHHS has been integrating psychiatry sessions into other 

community based clinics.

When CCHHS took over clinical services at 

the Roseland clinic (via C4) CCHHS claimed 

that it would eventually staff the center 

with its own employees. But instead, it is 

further distancing itself from doing so with 

its latest contract with HRDI. What 

assurances are there, given that reportedly 

in the past CCHHS has had difficulty hiring 

psychiatrists, that it will ever “staff-up” the 

City mental health centers with its own 

CCHHS employed psychiatrists?
County

CCHHS continues to be committed to behavioral health and 

staffing psychiatry.  As we are growing the footprint for 

psychiatry, we need to rely on our vendor to fill in.

CCHHS – CEO, Jay Shannon, made 

comments on Feb. 15 about providing 

“evidence-based” care. Does CCHHS have a 

protocol or standards that it follows to 

determine when an individual should see a 

psychiatrist versus a psychologist versus a 

clinical therapist versus a case manager or 

some other professional?
County

The system does have a protocol for screening for mental 

illness, substance abuse and suicidality which prompts an 

evaluation first by a LCSW who works in conjunction with 

the primary care physician who in turn can either 

communicate with a psychiatrist or simply refer to specialty 

psychiatry.

What evidence can CCHHS give to the public to 

show that it provides evidence-based 

psychiatry practice in its own ACHN facilities? County

CCHHS utilizes protocols that include evidenced based 

screening tools and medication algorithms.



Does CCHHS use peer recovery support 

specialist in its ACHNs, Cermak, or other 

facilities? County

We do not currently use peer recovery anywhere in the 

system.

Does CCHHS have a psychiatry residency or 

affiliated with one? County

No

What studies or patient satisfaction surveys has 

CCHHS performed about its use of 

telepsychiatry? County

We have not had any surveys related specifically to tele 

psych services.

What measures of quality has ReGroup 

demonstrated at CCHHS facilities? County

Any work Regroup does for CCHHS patients will be reflected 

in the overall quality measures.

Does CCHHS have a mental health board? Does 

the Behavioral Health Consortium have persons 

with lived experience with mental illness on its 

board? County

No

Please make available a copy of the amended 

contract with ReGroup, approved by the Cook 

County Health and Hospitals System Board 

January 26, 2018. County

This contract was previously provided under a separate 

inquiry.

The current CCHHS-ReGroup contract refers to 

“clients/inmates.” City clinic participants are 

not inmates. County

Correct.  The contract isn't only about providing care at the 

CDPH facilities, but could also be used at Cermak.

One of the CCHHS Directors suggested that the 

CDPH-CCHHS should take into account the 

“geriatric” population (generally 65 years +) in 

deciding whether to deploy telepsychiatrists. Is 

there an evidence-base to the Director’s 

concern? County

In psychiatry, we do not have special geriatric psychiatric 

services established.

In response to a recent FOIA records request 

CDPH was unable to provide a breakdown of 

the number of persons served by age group by 

center. Is this data available now? City

CDPH can provide a breakdown, but not by the categories 

provided.



The CCHHS 2016 contract with ReGroup states 

that “Regroup will match the skills and 

experience levels of its Personnel to the 

specific needs specified by CCHHS.” Exhibit 

A.I.H. page 25. What is the demographic make-

up of ReGroup psychiatrists (gender, age range, 

languages spoken, race/ethnicity)? County

Sara Bodner - Caucasian; Language(s) spoken: English; 

Female; Age 64

Maria Linden - Caucasian; Language(s) spoken: English; 

Female; Age 39

E. Rackley Ivey - Caucasian; Language(s) spoken: English; 

Male; Age 64

Omar Elhaj - Caucasian; Language(s) spoken: Arabic, French, 

English; Male; Age 47

Please share a copy of the CCHHS 

telepsychiatry consent inform. County

There are consent forms to receive care but not one specific 

to telepsychiatry.

What if a patient doesn’t want to use 

telepsychiatry? County

The department is working with the clinical team to define a 

clinical transition plan driven by clinical necessity. Any 

instances where it has been determined that telepsychiatry 

is not a fit for a client will be reviewed on a case-by-case 

basis. 

How will confidentiality and privacy be 

maintained and provided? County

Regroup ensures privatcy of all communications through its 

platform.  All encrypted between the patient and the 

clinician, and any data that Regroup protected using our 

HIPAA privacy and security policies.  Furthermore, chart 

notes directly into our partner EMR, reducing the risk to the 

data.

What assurances do you have that the vendor 

uses a ‘competent’ web connection? County

We have checked connectivity at all locations which are 

functional.

Are psychiatrists permitted to practice 

telepsychiatry from their homes? County

Yes, there are no restrictions on where the distant site 

provider is sitting in Illinois, there are only restrictions on 

the originating site where the patient is sitting.



How does the patient know that nobody else is 

listening to the conversation? County

Regroup video sessions conducted between the patient and 

the clinician, when conducted over the RegroupConnect 

platform, are encrypted using the AES-256 technology used 

by banks and other institutions to maintain security of the 

session.  Regroup does not store the video after the session 

is complete.

Is anybody else in the room with the client 

besides the psychiatrist during telepsychiatry 

sessions? County

No, which is in line with legal requirements.  

What is the communication between 

telepsychiatrists and staff? City

Case staffing meetings that include staff and psychiatrists 

will occur weekly as they do now. Additionally, there will be 

bi-directional access for both entities to share medical 

records. 

How will emergencies be handled? City

The pre-identified clinic contact will be alerted by the 

telepsychiatrist by phone as soon as an emergency has been 

identified. If this individual is unavailable for any reason, the 

telepsychiatrist will call 911. If the point of contact is 

reached, he or she will call 911 and stay with the client until 

EMT arrives.  The telepsychiatrist will not end the remote 

session until the client has been joined by an onsite staff 

member or EMT and a verbal hand off has been completed. 

How will people receive prescriptions? County

The psychiatrists will order the prescription in Cerner and 

the patient can either pick up the prescription or sign up for 

mail order prescriptions for ongoing prescriptions.

How will continuity of psychiatry care be 

managed? County

CCHHS will prioritize continuity of care of selected 

psychiatrists.



Currently in-person psychiatrist have not been 

distributed equitably. How will racial equity in 

service provision be addressed with the use of 

telepsychiatry? Will all five (5) centers have 

equitable access to both in-person psychiatry 

and telepsychiatry? City

The program will determine the placement of psychiatry 

services based upon client utilization across the 5 locations. 

Are any of the telepsychiatrists black or latino? County

No


